OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS
MARQUETTE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
November 11, 2025

Aregular meeting of the Marquette City Planning Commission was duly called and held at 6:00 p.m.
on Tuesday, November 11, 2025, in the Commission Chambers at City Hall. This meeting is also
available to view online here at the City’s website.

ROLL CALL

Planning Commission (PC) members present (5): M. Rayner, J. Fitkin, J. Guter, Chair Kevin Clegg, N.
Vermaat.

PC Members absent (4): K. Hunter, D. Fetter, S. Lawry, Vice-Chair A. Wilkinson.

Staff present: City Planner and Zoning Administrator D. Stensaas, Zoning Official A. Landers.

AGENDA

It was moved by M. Rayner, seconded by J. Fitkin, and carried 5-0 to approve the agenda as presented,

MINUTES

It was moved by J. Fitkin, seconded by M. Rayner, and carried 3-0, with two (2) abstentions, to
approve the minutes of the October 07, 2025 meeting, with changes stated by K. Clegg to a portion of the
minutes that were reported as “inaudible”.

CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION ON AGENDA ITEMS

Nobody wished to comment.

NEW BUSINESS

A. 2026 Planning Commission Meeting Dates

A. Landers said that she drafted a memo showing meeting dates for calendar year 2026 and said that
the Planning Commission should make a motion on approving the dates if they find them acceptable.

It was moved by J. Guter, seconded by N. Vermaat, and carried 5-0 to approve the proposed
meeting dates for 2026.

B. Site Plan Review Update

A. Landers explained that the chart provided shows the site plans that have been approved during this
calendar year, and which were approved by staff and those that needed Planning Commission (PC)
approval. She also said that the site plan tally for 2024 is included at the bottom for comparison. She
asked if anyone had questions. There were some questions and a bit of discussion followed. The
meeting video referenced in the link at the top of the page provides full audio content of the meeting.

D. Stensaas said that the reason staff is providing this periodic review is that a couple of years ago the
City adopted new standards for site plan review that increased the threshold for the PC to need to review
plans and placed more of the responsibility on staff, so this type of periodic review helps get the Planning
Commission up to speed on what plans have been reviewed by staff, and it provides transparency by
putting this information out in the public record. He also said that in 2024, about seventy-five percent of
site plans were reviewed by staff and only a quarter by the PC.

N. Vermaat asked if the requirement for acting on a site plan is to begin construction within one year?


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=OsiZAERgIbU&t=1312s

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS
MARQUETTE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
November 11, 2025
A. Landers said yes, they just have to start implementing the project within a year. D. Stensaas said that
just putting a shovel in the ground is adequate and related how that act was used to document the
beginning of one project in the city recently.

J. Guter asked if staff has to approve the site plans if the proposal meets zoning requirements.

D. Stensaas said yes, and that was the reason for the shift towards staff approval for most site plans. He
also said that all site plans that don't involve some discretion by the PC are going to be approved if they
meet all the standards, and unless there is some potential large community impact, it doesn't make sense
to waste the developer's time, the Planning Commission’s time, or the staff’s time in preparing staff
reports. He said this was a recommendation of the Michigan Planning Association a few years ago, and
we were quick to act on it, especially given that times are hard for development, with financing being
very costly and the conditions for creating moderately affordable housing extremely difficult to achieve.

A. Landers said that site plan review is an administrative function, where the point is to determine if it
meets codes. She also said that we're lucky here in the City to have different departments with all the
necessary staffing to review site plans, whereas in some townships, you may only have one staff person
and no separate engineering, fire, or public works departments to conduct their own reviews.

D. Stensaas also said that we do regular updates of the Land Development Code, so if we know that we
like the standards that are adopted, we should be comfortable with staff performing most plan reviews.

CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Nobody wished to comment.

TRAINING

A. MAP Develops Transportation Land Use Guiding Principles article, Michigan Planner
magazine (Michigan Assoc. of Planning ), July-Aug. 2025.

D. Stensaas remarked that this article points out the fact that land use and transportation are
intertwined and that it's timely due to the two big transportation planning projects that the City is
involved with now, which are the micromobility plan that is due to be released next month and the traffic
study for the corridors and intersections around the “College Heights"/former hospital site and the new
dorms being built on Presque Isle Avenue. The Planning Commission and staff briefly the article and the
traffic study.

J. Guter asked if there would be a presentation on the traffic study that was done. D. Stensaas said that
he wasn't sure, but would try to find out and report back to the PC.

K. Clegg said that he appreciated the article and liked that it mentioned fostering economic growth and
social equity, and that from his experience with bike commuting year-round for a decade, there are
significant financial savings that can be realized, and that alternative modes of transportation can make
cities more affordable, and so that it is something we should be working towards.

WORK SESSION ON REPORTS/PLANS/ORDINANCES

A. COMMUNITY MASTER PLAN REVIEW

D. Stensaas said that the checklist from MSU-Extension (MSUE) has been used in the past to develop
and review our Master Plans, and said he used the most recently updated version to review the current
Plan.



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS
MARQUETTE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
November 11, 2025

He stated that this effort is required because the Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) program of
the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) requires us to renew our certification. He
explained that there were numerous requirements for initial certification from this program, and some of
those things — like our Guide to Development — had to be updated, and that is good because it needed to
be updated. He navigated to the Community Development Department page online and showed the links
on the Planning page to the Community Master Plan (CMP), and said that the Guide to Development is
found on the Zoning page.

He said that he used the MSUE checklist when he was developing the 2015 CMP, and that by his
recollection, that Plan met all of the required items in the list, and that the current one doesn’t. He said
that is a bit of a problem, but he pointed out that on top of the third page of the checklist it states that
“the Planning Enabling Act allows communities great latitude to determine the contents of a Master Plan
and then it goes into how a lot of plans are constructed. He explained that we have an executive
summary and a “factbook” with all of the background information, that the “Vision for Marquette”
guidebook or summary is about 50 pages, and the factbook is ten chapters and some appendices, which
is where all the data and most of the information about the city is compiled. He said that the Land Use
Plan and the chart called the Zoning Plan, which is only three pages, are in the executive summary.

n

He explained how the checklist is laid out, identifying items that are to be included under the Planning
Enabling Act and those that are not required. He put his annotated list, which he said he sent to the
members by email with the agenda, up on the monitors for the discussion. He said that the only things
not included in the Community Master Plan [but should be] are the Zoning Map, and that some aspects
of the Zoning Plan are deficient. He said he went through the checklist, annotated where those items are
in the plan, and that we don't need to discuss any of that unless the members wish to. He also provided
background information to show how people from neighboring jurisdictions were involved, noting that
some of the ways the checklist items are satisfied are not obvious from the Plan's content.

J. Guter asked if there are some other things there that we should supplement our Master Plan with?

D. Stensaas said that in his notes for what the CMP is missing, there is a description of the zoning
districts, because the current plan doesn’t speak to those or any proposed zoning districts. He explained
that when the last Community Master Plan was being created, there was a lot of discussion about the
deficiencies of existing zoning districts, the advantages of making changes by adding new districts and
eliminating others, and a lot of that was stated in the Plan. He said that Master Plan, adopted in 2015,
described existing zoning districts and made recommendations for new zoning districts, and that most of
those changes were adopted with the rest of the Land Development Code (LDC) in 2019.

M. Rayner asked if the zoning map is also missing. D. Stensaas said yes, that is the other big thing that's
missing, according to the checklist.

K. Clegg asked about the amendment process for the Master Plan.

D. Stensaas said that it will involve notification as for a new plan, and a lot of the same process, but we
wouldn't be doing workshops and that kind of outreach if the amendment is in the next year or so. He
also said that the zoning map and descriptions of zoning districts is in the Land Development Code, and
that Code is more or less based on the zoning plan from the previous Community Master Plan, and the
current Master Plan hasn’t been around long enough to affect what we've done with reconfiguring any of
our zoning districts.



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS
MARQUETTE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
November 11, 2025

M. Rayner asked if an amendment can be added without going through the whole process.

D. Stensaas said that even adding an appendix requires us to notify people that we're amending the
CMP, but that's not really a big deal, and that’s why just doing the minimum required outreach to our
adjacent units of government alone wouldn’t be adequate public outreach for doing a major amendment
to the CMP. But the things we're talking about are pretty uncontroversial, unless we're going to make
recommendations for changing zoning districts.

J. Guter asked if there was a discussion of that during the planning process.

D. Stensaas said that there was internal discussion of that with our consultants, and they were hired to
lead the process with input from our steering committee and staff. He said that the Future Land Use Plan
is vastly different in that it is vague on a parcel-level basis. He added that previous to the current CMP,
there was a parcel-specific Future Land Use Plan. He said that may have been too rigid, and that the
existing Future Land Use Plan has created typologies for neighborhoods or locations/districts within the
city, where those land-use recommendations apply. He also said he believes the future land use plan can
be interpreted in different ways, referencing the extent of what the recommendations apply to in
particular, and related that the rezoning that went to the City Commission recently - which the PC
recommended and the City Commission denied — is an example of that. He also said he thinks our staff
assumed our consultants would deliver a plan that met all legal requirements, and that we weren't
reviewing it by a checklist like this, but the description of zoning districts and a zoning map should have
been included. He said that those are oversights, but that he doesn’t consider it a huge problem because
our LDC contains the missing items from the CMP, but he thinks that there will need to be an amendment
to the Plan to get those things into compliance with the Act.

J. Guter asked if there were any other big-ticket things that would also need to be addressed.

D. Stensaas said no, those were the only things that he found missing. He scrolled through his annotated
checklist and said that he left off his review at the point where the “Best Planning Practice Content” list
begins. He explained that the CMP doesn’t comprehensively address “asset management” and that should
possibly be included in the next amendment which provides for new, optional content. He said he is
referring specifically to the asset management program developed by the Michigan Infrastructure Council,
which is taught to municipal and township officials to help communities better manage their assets within
a framework plan, rather than in a reactive mode for large asset replacement and unplanned
maintenance costs. He related that the City has not yet begun comprehensive asset management, which
would involve each department conducting a readiness assessment, developing service delivery and other
goals for its assets, and then developing long-term maintenance and replacement plans for all of the
City’'s assets.

K. Clegg asked what the timeline is for getting the Plan reapproved, notifying people and getting the
word out, how long are we looking at?

D. Stensaas said that if it's just an amendment for the required items we discussed, that's pretty simple
and is a process that only takes a few months, but related that he didn’t know if we'll do that or if we're
going to take on something more substantial before we do an amendment. He said that the minutes of
this meeting will be transmitted to the RRC staff for their feedback.



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS
MARQUETTE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
November 11, 2025

He also said that staff has a fairly robust list of items to update in the Land Development Code, and he
said that one thing we talked a bit about last year that we didn’t do was to recommend and initiate the
possible rezoning of some properties, because there are some rezonings that are justified. He said he
wants to discuss with Dennis whether we might embark on that, and that it might come to bring up at
the joint work session scheduled between the Planning Commission and City Commission on December
8™, He said that we could discuss that at your next meeting. He also said that he didn’t have anything
else to discuss on the CMP checklist.

K. Clegg asked if there were any more questions, then said that we'll look forward to moving forward on
this.

B. LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENTS
D. Stensaas said that we're starting with simple, easy items.

A. Landers explained that the amendments provided are things we found that need to be fixed, mainly
language issues.

The Staff and Planning Commission discussed the provided items and agreed to the proposed changes
for each issue, in addition to deciding that the word “existing” should be removed from section 54.639(A)
of the LDC, leaving only “required” parking subject to the provisions of that section of Article 6.

It was moved by M. Rayner, seconded by J. Guter, and carried 5-0 to add the items discussed to
the final document of proposed LDC amendments.

COMMISSION and STAFF COMMENTS
M. Rayner thanked the two new members for joining the commission.

J. Guter said that he wants to reiterate that he is happy to be here and is looking forward to being a
productive member of this commission.

N. Vermaat said that he is excited to learn from the other members and to be here.
J. Fitkin welcomed the new members to the board.

D. Stensaas said that the next scheduled meeting, for 11/18, would be cancelled since no business needs
to be conducted. He also said to please follow up on the invitation to the work session.

A. Landers said that she was told an item would be delivered this week that will require a meeting on
12/16. She also thanked the two new members for volunteering.

K. Clegg thanked the two new members for joining the commission.



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS
MARQUETTE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
November 11, 2025

ADJOURNMENT

Chair K. Clegg adjourned the meeting at 7:20 pm

 Dawed, Stonazas

Prepared by D. Stensaas, City Planner and Zoning Administrator, Planning Commission Staff Liaison



